
Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

November 13, 2023 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_DRAFT_NOVEMBER_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For IUP For A Retreat Center

Request submitted by Ethan Bleifuss and Sherry Kempf (Belvidere Hills LLC, Owners) 

to establish a retreat center in an existing structure. Parcel 26.003.1503. 34965 

Betcher Trail Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of the S ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 03 TWP 

111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A-2 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_BLEIFUSS.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Updates - Solid Waste 
Transfer Facilities And Floodplain Repetitive Loss Ordinance

Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards), 

and Article 20 (Table of Uses) to allow Solid Waste Transfer Facilities. Proposed 

amendments to Article 32 (Floodplain District) to add Repetitive Loss language. 

PACPACKET_ORDINANCEREVISIONS_ONLINE.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

November 13, 2023 DRAFT Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_DRAFT_NOVEMBER_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For IUP For A Retreat Center

Request submitted by Ethan Bleifuss and Sherry Kempf (Belvidere Hills LLC, Owners) 

to establish a retreat center in an existing structure. Parcel 26.003.1503. 34965 

Betcher Trail Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of the S ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 03 TWP 

111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A-2 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_BLEIFUSS.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Updates - Solid Waste 
Transfer Facilities And Floodplain Repetitive Loss Ordinance

Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards), 

and Article 20 (Table of Uses) to allow Solid Waste Transfer Facilities. Proposed 

amendments to Article 32 (Floodplain District) to add Repetitive Loss language. 

PACPACKET_ORDINANCEREVISIONS_ONLINE.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/68721a36-c4ac-49cb-b792-e552b8c0d881


Page 1 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
November 13, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 5:48 PM 
by Chair Chris Buck at the Goodhue County Government Center in Red Wing. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Tom Gale, Richard Miller, Darwin Fox, Howard Stenerson, Richard Nystuen, 
Chris Buck, and Todd Greseth 

Commissioners Absent: Marc Huneke 

Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning 
Assistant William Lenzen 

1. Approval of Agenda 
 

1Motion by Commissioner Stenerson; seconded by Commissioner Nystuen to approve the meeting 
agenda. 
 
Motion carried 7:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Greseth to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 7:0  
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.    
 

4. Public Hearings  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: “Olson Addition” Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Request, submitted by Dave Rapp (Authorized Agent) on behalf of David Olson (Owner) for 
Preliminary and Final Plat review of the proposed Olson Addition plat comprising approximately 
126.49 acres. Parcels 35.002.0901, 35.002.1300, 35.002.1500, and 35.003.0800. 40783 Bow Trail 
Nerstrand, MN 55053. Part of the SW ¼ and Part of the NW ¼ of Section 02 and Part of the E ½ of 
the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 03 all in TWP 110 Range 18 in Holden Township. A1 Zoned District.    

 



Page 2 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
November 13, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Pierret presented the staff report and attachments including a letter from the properties’ estate 
representative David Olson.  

Commissioner Greseth questioned the rationale for squaring off the Anglestad property using this 
plat.  

Pierret stated the Anglestad parcel is also landlocked and if they purchased proposed Lot 4 the 
proposed access to Bow Trail would give them legal access as required by the Subdivision 
Ordinance.  

Commissioner Stenerson stated he did not see any Township approval. 

Pierret stated the Township must sign off on the plat after County Board approval. She had spoken 
with both clerks prior to this meeting but after packets had been mailed.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked will there be a township meeting on this.  

Pierret stated that she doesn’t know if it will be presented at the next Township meeting because one 
of the Township Clerks informed her that the Holden Township Planning Commission had already 
reviewed the proposal and that is the group that initially determined that Lot 4 is not buildable 
under Township rules.  

Commissioner Nystuen stated the Township has verbally acknowledged this plat but could the 
Olsons apply for a variance at the township level to make Lot 4 buildable? 

Pierret stated that they could but the Township has their own minimum lot size and access 
standards that are more restrictive than the County’s. She cannot speak to whether the Township 
would or would not approve variances for this property. 

Commissioner Stenerson confirmed that at the County level, it is a buildable site. Are they thinking 
about meeting the Township’s standards for a building site by possibly adding the Angelstad land to 
Lot 4 to meet Township standards? 

Pierret stated that they would have to come back to the board for a replat if they wanted to combine 
platted land with unplatted land.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked whether the Applicants were aware of that fact. 

Pierret noted that the Applicant has been told by County staff and the Township that Lot 4 is not 
buildable under Holden Township standards.  

Hanni stated when it comes through the Surveyor’s office they have 180 days to get everything 
signed and recorded otherwise the Applicant would need to reapply for plat approval through the 
Planning Commission and County Board.   

Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 
Pierret read a letter from Jacob and Breanna Kohn (40580 Bow Trail Nerstrand, MN 55053). They 
were concerned with the proposed easement that would go around two sides of their property for 
Lot 4 to access Bow Trail. Their concerns include a reduction in privacy if another dwelling were 
established and used that access, reduced natural features for hunting and outdoor enjoyment, and 
a disturbance to their private enjoyment of their property. They requested that a new route be 
established for the easement. 



Page 3 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
November 13, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Discussion continued among the Board and staff about the “easement” referenced in the letter. Staff 
noted that the access in Section 02 is not an easement, it is land that will be connected to the 
property in Section 03 to serve as legal access to a public road as required by the County 
Subdivision Ordinance.   

Heath Glassburn (4875 County 49 Blvd Dennison, MN 55018) noted that he was here representing 
the Kohns as they were unable to attend. He stated that currently, Lot 4 would not be a buildable 
site until Angelstads bought it then it would be buildable. He also asked about the proposed 
easement.  

Hanni stated that the access is not an “easement”, it is part of Lot 4.  

Mr. Glassburn stated that the Kohns’ concerns were the potential for Lot 4 to be sold to Mr. 
Angelstad thus making the Angelstad’s existing 16 acres plus new Lot 4 a 20-acre buildable site 
which is what they didn’t want to happen. 
3After Chair Buck called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 7:0 
 
Commissioner Nystuen informed the board of the familial connections between the Olsons, 
Angelstads, and Luebkes (who live across the street). This is a familial and estate property division.  

Commissioner Greseth asked for confirmation that Mr. Olson is the executor of the estate.  

Pierret confirmed and stated Mr. Olson provided a copy of the court document to staff for 
verification of his authority.  

Commissioner Stenerson added that the Planning Commission is not deciding what can or cannot be 
done with Lot 4 or the Angelstad property tonight. The Planning Commission is tasked with 
determining whether the plat fits the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances and he does not see any 
conflicts with the proposal under those rules.  
4It was moved by Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller for 
the Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
 and 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Dave 
Rapp (Authorized Agent) on behalf of David Olson (Owner) for the Preliminary and Final Plat of 
the proposed “Olson Addition” comprising approximately 126.49 acres. 

 
Motion carried 7:0 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request, submitted by Dale and Diane Olson (Owners) to rezone 13.92 acres from A-1 (Agriculture 
Protection District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District) to establish one dwelling site. Parcel 



Page 4 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
November 13, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

39.008.3200. 480th Street Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the SW ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 08 TWP 
109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township.   
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Miller noted that the Applicants did not formally come to the Township for approval 
of the map amendment. He noted the Town Board discussed this property at their last meeting with 
regard to the potential for “farmette” districts. He added the Town Board would approve this 
request for rezoning if brought to the Board. He also noted the presence of small wooded lots in this 
section that could lend themselves to residential development. 

Commissioner Stenerson questioned whether the Hinrich’s property to the east was the same 
property that was dealt with last year for a Conservation Subdivision.  

Commissioner Miller confirmed the property to the east is the same Hinrichs property that is now in 
a Conservation Subdivision.  

Chair Buck Opened the Public Hearing 
No one spoke for or against the request.  
5After Chair Buck called three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Nystuen to close the Public Hearing. 
Commissioner Stenerson stated that these tiny spot zoning requests can cause issues and there is a 
mix of agricultural land and woodlands in the area. Commissioner Stenerson asked Commissioner 
Miller whether Pine Island Township would prefer to do a complete rezoning of this section or the ¼ 
¼ in the future instead of just this one parcel tonight. 
 
Commissioner Miller stated that the Board should look at the request in front of them tonight but 
consider looking at larger portions of this section soon. The City of Zumbrota and the City of Pine 
Island will be connected along Highway 52 in the future. He noted that the land north of the Olsons 
has had proposals for development and annexation by the City of Zumbrota.  

Hanni stated that the whole section could not be zoned Residential because we have a Conservation 
Subdivision within the section, so maybe just the ¼ ¼ would be better suited to begin with. She 
added that it would help the owners along 191st Avenue Way to meet setback standards if they were 
zoned R1 with how small the parcels are for an A1 District. She added that during the Hinrich’s 
Conservation Subdivision consideration, there was discussion about including the Olson property in 
that request however that was not pursued.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked the Olsons how soon they are thinking about building their home.  

The Olsons stated they would be ready in a year. 

Commissioner Stenerson stated it could be best to send this back to the Township to discuss with 
residents to fix this corner and rezoning the entire section or part of the section to a Residential 
District.   

Hanni stated that it may be best at this time to focus on the Olson’s request since they have come 
forward now and make changes at a later date on cleaning up the rest of the area as seen in staff’s 
recommendation. She prefers that zoning ordinances not single out certain Townships for certain 



Page 5 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
November 13, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

zoning districts or uses. Every Township should have the opportunity to allow a zone or use at their 
discretion.   

Commissioner Miller agreed with staff’s recommendation.  

 
6It was moved by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Nystuen for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the finding of fact; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
 and 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request, submitted by Dale and 
Diane Olson (Owners) to rezone 13.92 acres from A-1 (Agriculture Protection District) to R-1 
(Suburban Residence District) and direct staff to begin the process of rezoning existing properties 
along 191st Avenue Way and 480th Street in Section 08 to R-1 by working with residents and Pine 
Island Township.  

Motion carried 6:1 (Stenerson dissented) 
 
Other Discussion 

Commissioner Miller stated that Pine Island Township wants to see more discussion to increase 
dwelling density per section. 
7ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Greseth to 
adjourn the Planning Commission Meeting at 6:36 p.m.  

Motion carried 7:0 

Respectfully Submitted, 

William Lenzen Zoning Assistant  

MOTIONS 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda 
Motion carried 7:0 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes 
Motion carried 7:0 
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 7:0   
4 APPROVE the request for Preliminary and Final plat  
Motion carried 7:0  
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 7:0 
6 APPROVE the request for Map Amendment (rezone) 

                                                           



Page 6 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION 

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
November 13, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Motion carried 6:1 
7 ADJOURN. Motion to adjourn the meeting 
Motion carried 7:0 
 
 
 
 







 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: December 18, 2023 
Report date: December 8, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for IUP for a Retreat Center 
Request submitted by Ethan Bleifuss and Sherry Kempf (Belvidere Hills LLC, Owners) to establish a 
retreat center in an existing structure. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Ethan Bleifuss and Sherry Kempf (Belvidere Hills LLC, Owners) 
Address of zoning request: 34965 Betcher Trail Goodhue, MN 55027 
Parcel(s): 26.003.1503 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the S ½ of the SW ¼ of Section 03 TWP 111 Range 14 in 
Belvidere Township 
Township Information: Belvidere Township signed acknowledgement of the proposed use with no 
additional comments on November 14, 2023 
Zoning District: A2 (General Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted Project Summary  
Site Map(s) 
Article 11 Section 25 Retreat Centers 
Article 11 Section 30 Rural Tourism 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The Applicants currently own two parcels comprising approximately 30 acres in sections 03 and 04 
in Belvidere Township. They are proposing to operate a small retreat center within the existing 
dwelling on their 7 acre parcel in Section 03.  

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission 
specifies facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 
already permitted, will not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area, that adequate measures have been, 
or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage, and other necessary facilities, to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, 
and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 

Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
 The subject parcel comprises approximately 7.22 acres. Apart from the existing dwelling, the 

property consists mostly of woodlands, bluffs, and natural areas. The Applicants have not 
indicated a desire to use their 22 acre parcel in Section 04 as part of the retreat center operations.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

 The property is zoned A2 (General Agriculture District) and is bordered by A2 zoned properties 
on all sides. Adjacent land uses include row crop agriculture and low-density residential among 
blufflands and woodlands.  

 The property is located within the A2 Zoning District where a maximum of 12 dwellings are 
permitted, one per original ¼ ¼ section. Section 03 currently has 8 dwellings.  

 Access to the site is located off of Betcher Trail (gravel surface) on the east side of the property. 
210th AVE connects to County 2 BLVD (blacktop surface) approximately 1 mile northeast of the 
property.  

 The dwelling is screened from the road by wooded areas and hillsides and is setback over 800 
feet from the road.   

Retreat Center Operations: 
 The Applicants are proposing to utilize the existing 2,000-square-foot dwelling to host small 

retreats throughout the year for up to 10 guests.  

 Retreat bookings would be offered year-round 7-days a week with day activities mainly taking 
place between 8 AM and 6 PM with occasional overnight use.   

 The Applicants are aware that the structure will need to be reviewed by the Goodhue County 
Building Permits Department to ensure compliance with the Minnesota State Building Code for a 
change of use before opening to the public. 

 The Applicant intends to install a sign at the driveway entrance to the property. Per GCZO Article 
11 Section 17, the use is limited to 32 square feet of signage for each of two allowed sign faces. No 
signage should be placed within the public right-of-way without permission from the road 
authority (Belvidere Township).  

 The Applicant will be required to obtain all appropriate permits from the Minnesota Department 
of Health.  

 The existing dwelling has exterior lighting and no additional lighting is proposed. 

 The Applicants have indicated there will be limited potential for noise due to the limited number 
of guests and the distance of the structure to other dwellings in the area (over 800 feet). 

 Guests would be responsible for providing their own food and beverages.   

Accessibility/Parking: 
 The existing road system appears adequate to accommodate traffic for the proposed use. 

Adequate emergency service vehicle access appears available to support the site. 

 Pursuant to GCZO Article 11, Section 16, the Zoning Administrator has determined minimum off-
street parking provisions shall be one parking space per guest room. A minimum of 2 off-street 
parking spaces are required for this facility with the two sleeping rooms.  

 The Applicant has a designated gravel parking area west of the dwelling capable of holding 6 
vehicles.  

Utilities: 
 The existing dwelling is served by an individual Subsurface Sewage Treatment System (SSTS).  

The septic system received a certificate of compliance in November 2023. Depending on the scale 
of future use/number of events and participants the Applicants may want to consider working 
with the County Environmental Health Department to avoid septic failure.  

 Solid waste disposal services will be provided locally. Any hazardous materials or fluids 
generated shall be properly disposed of.  

DRAFT Findings of Fact: 
1. The proposed Retreat Center does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in 

the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. A maximum of 10 guests are proposed and the site is 
isolated from neighboring dwellings by distance, topography, and vegetative cover. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

2. The Retreat Center is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. The use is 
proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance. The use, 
as proposed, appears compatible with existing adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. Due to the limited capacity and distance from other dwellings, the use is unlikely to result in 
offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so the use will not constitute a nuisance. The 
applicant’s lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no 
disturbance to neighboring properties will result.  

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Ethan Bleifuss and 
Sherry Kempf (Belvidere Hills LLC, Owners) to establish a Retreat Center within an existing 
structure. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP.   

2. Retreat Center occupancy shall not exceed 10 guests; 

3. On-street parking/loading shall be prohibited; 

4. All exterior signage located on the property must follow Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
Article 11 Section 17 (Sign Regulations). The applicant shall consult the appropriate road 
authority prior to placing signs within the road Right-of-Way; 

5. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for a change of use to the existing structure 
from the Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to establishing the use; 

6. Applicant shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to obtain appropriate 
permits for future septic construction or capacity increases as needed; 

7. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 11, 
Section 25 Retreat Centers, Article 11 Section 30 Rural Tourism, and Article 22 A2, General 
Agriculture District; and 

9. The Interim Use Permit shall expire upon the sale of the property.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 































Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 10   July 18, 2023 

list and map of protected waters shall be filed in the Office of the County Auditor and 
the Zoning Administrator. 
PUBLIC CONSERVATION LANDS.  See Article 18 (WECS)  
PUBLIC DRAINAGE SYSTEM.  Has the meaning given to drainage system in 
Minn. Stat. §103E.005, subd. 12. 
QUALIFIED INDEPENDENT ACOUSTICAL CONSULTANT.  See Article 18 
(WECS) 
REACH.  A hydraulic engineering term to describe a longitudinal segment of a 
stream or river influenced by a natural or man-made obstruction.  In an urban area, 
the segment of a stream or river between two consecutive bridge crossings would 
most typically constitute a reach. 
RECLAMATION.  See Article 14 (Mineral Extraction)  
RECREATION VEHICLE.  See Article 32 (Floodplain District)  
REGIONAL FLOOD.  A flood which is representative of large floods known to have 
occurred generally in Minnesota and reasonably characteristic of what can be 
expected to occur on an average frequency in the magnitude of the 100 years 
recurrence interval.  Regional flood is synonymous with the term "base flood" used 
in the Flood Insurance Study. 
REGULATORY FLOOD PROTECTION ELEVATION.  A point not less than 
one (1) foot above the water surface profile associated with the regional flood plus 
any increase in flood heights contributable to encroachment on the floodplain.  It is 
the elevation to which uses regulated by this Ordinance are required to be elevated 
or flood-proofed.  
RETREAT CENTER.  A private facility or facilities oriented to using the natural 
features and outdoor character of the area to offer professional, educational, 
recreational or religious meetings, seminars, workshops, or gatherings which may 
provide meals, temporary lodging, and passive recreation for visitors and may 
include multiple related uses managed as one operation. 
RIGHT-OF-WAY.  A strip of land acquired by reservation, dedication, forced 
dedication, prescription or condemnation and intended to be occupied or occupied 
by a road, crosswalk, railroad, electric transmission lines, oil or gas pipeline, and 
other similar uses. 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES. The lines that form the boundaries of a right-of-way.  
ROTOR.  See Article 18 (WECS)  
ROTOR BLADES.  See Article 18 (WECS)  
ROTOR DIAMETER.  See Article 18 (WECS) 
RURAL TOURISM. Business which attracts visitors to rural areas of Goodhue 
County using the rural outdoor environment for attractions that include, but are not 
limited to, retreats, weddings, receptions, bed and breakfasts, educational events, 
and holiday celebrations.  
SCREENED.  When a structure is built or placed on a lot or vegetation is planted 
such that when the structure is built, it is visually inconspicuous as viewed from the 
river during the summer months.  Visually inconspicuous means difficult to see or 
not readily noticeable in summer months as viewed from the river. 
SELF-SERVICE STORAGE FACILITY. Real property designed and used for the 
purpose of renting or leasing secure outdoor storage space and/or self-contained 

spierret
Highlight

spierret
Highlight



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11  Amended July 18, 2023 

 

Agricultural production that complied with all Goodhue County Ordinances, shall not be considered 
by this County as constituting a nuisance. 

This Ordinance is not to be construed as in any way modifying or abridging the State law, rather, it is 
only to be utilized in the interpretation and enforcement of the provisions of this code and County 
regulations. 

Subd. 1. AGRICULTURAL OPERATION.  Property primarily used for the production of crops 
including fruit and vegetable production, tree farming, livestock, poultry, dairy products, 
or poultry products, and associated processing of agricultural products produced by the 
operation. Agricultural Operation shall also include certain farm activities and uses as 
follows:  chemical and fertilizer spraying, farm machinery noise, extended hours of 
operation, manure collection, disposal, spreading or storing, open storage of machinery, 
feedlots, odors produced from farm animals, crops or products used in farming. 

Subd. 2. ESTABLISHED DATE OF OPERATION.  For the purposes of this section, the 
established date of operation shall be the date on which the agricultural operation 
commenced.   

Subd. 3. AGRICULTURAL OPERATION NOT A NUISANCE.  An agricultural operation 
which continues without interruption or change shall not become a private nuisance if 
the operation was not a nuisance at its established date of operation.  The provisions of 
this subdivision do not apply: 

A. To a condition or injury which results from the negligent or improper operation 
of an agricultural operation or from operations contrary to commonly accepted 
agricultural practices. 

B. To applicable State or local laws, ordinances, rules or permits. 

C. When an agricultural operation causes injury or direct threat or injury to the 
health or safety of any person. 

D. To the pollution of, or change in the condition of, waters of the State or the water 
flow of waters on the lands of any person; 

E. To an animal feedlot facility of one thousand (1,000) or more animal units. 

SECTION 25.    RETREAT CENTERS 
Subd. 1. The following standards shall apply to all Retreat Centers: 

A. A proposed schedule of events and any proposed special events, which consist of 
any events not part of the normal operating schedule. 

B. Contact information for caretaker(s) on duty and on site and the times they are 
present. 

C. Provide a general floor plan indicating the units to be used for the retreat center 
(in which the public may have access). 

D. Maps identifying property limits shall be provided to guests. 

E. The PAC may require installation of property boundary indicator signs along 
property boundary lines in accordance with Goodhue County Ordinance Sign 
regulations. 

spierret
Highlight



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11  Amended July 18, 2023 

 

F. Retreat units shall not be converted into permanent dwelling units, unless an 
application is approved showing that the units meet the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance, Building Code, and Environmental Health regulations. 

G. The maximum stay of the occupants shall not exceed two weeks, unless otherwise 
established by the IUP/CUP. 

H. Allow periodic inspections by the Land Use Management Department, 
Environmental Health Department, and Fire Marshall. 

I. Any existing buildings in which the public may have access shall obtain all 
applicable Building Code approvals prior to being utilized as part of a Retreat 
Center. 

J. Proof of liability insurance for the structures, property, occupants, visitors, and 
events shall be maintained. 

K. Maximum capacity shall not exceed 50 guests. 

SECTION 26.    KENNELS 
Subd. 1. Application and standards.  In addition to the other requirements, the application for 

conditional use permit shall be accompanied by 25 copies of the plans, which indicate or 
address the following: 

A. The stated purpose for the kennel; 

B. The species and maximum number of animals that will be at the site (include all 
animals over the age of 28 weeks on the property); 

C. All animals at the property must have current vaccinations.  Records need to be 
kept on-site, or at an identified veterinarian office, and produced immediately upon 
request; 

D. Location and size of all existing and proposed physical improvements such as 
buildings, landscaping, parking areas, etc.; 

E. Location of existing or proposed indoor/outdoor runs; 

F. Plans for sanitary sewage disposal, water systems (natural or manmade), and 
utilities servicing the site; 

G. Show the existing and proposed surface drainage; 

H. Existing or proposed location for overhead lighting; 

I. Location and width of all streets abutting the site; 

J. The kennel facility must have proper heating, cooling, ventilation and lighting: 

1. Confinement areas must be maintained at a temperature suitable for the 
animal involved. 

2. An indoor confinement area must be ventilated.  Drafts, odors, and 
moisture condensation must be minimized. Auxiliary ventilation, such as 
exhaust fans, vents, and air conditioning, must be used when the ambient 
temperature rises to a level that may endanger the health of the animal. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11  Amended July 18, 2023 

 

adjacent neighbors and the ability of the applicant to demonstrate that there will 
be no unreasonable adverse impact on the neighbors from the noise, traffic, 
trespass, light or other impacts deemed relevant by the County.  

G. The County may require a planted buffer between adjacent properties and parking 
or building if it is determined that such a buffer is necessary to avoid adverse 
impacts on adjacent properties.  

SECTION 30.    RURAL TOURISM  
Subd. 1. Rural Tourism events may be permitted in the A-1, A-2, or A-3 Zone Districts with an 

approved zoning permit at the discretion of the Zoning Administrator for up to two (2) 
events/activities per calendar year.  The right to utilize property for more than two 
events/activities per calendar year is subject to approval of a conditional use permit or an 
interim use permit by the Board of County Commissioners. In addition to submittal 
requirements set forth Article 4 (Conditional and Interim Uses), the following information 
must be provided with a conditional use permit or interim use permit application. 

A. Plan drawn to an appropriate scale for effective interpretation. 

B. Property boundaries, onsite parking areas and access roads. 

C. Existing uses on adjacent properties and distance of dwellings within 500 feet of 
the property boundary. 

D. Existing and proposed structures with maximum capacity of each building where 
guests have access as required to comply with building code and applicable fire 
safety requirements. 

E. Location of temporary toilet facilities, which may be required. 

F. Location of any existing or proposed wells or Subsurface Wastewater Treatments 
Systems (SSTS). 

G. A written description of the planned activities providing including maximum 
number of guests/visitors. 

H. Frequency and number of activities proposed in a calendar year. 

I. Hours of Operation/Activity including set-up/clean-up for activities and events.  

J. Proposed site lighting or landscaping. 

K. Anticipated maximum number of vehicle trips per day. 

Subd. 2 Performance Standards.   

In addition to all other applicable zoning ordinance requirements including but not 
limited to the review criteria (findings) included in Article 4, Section 5, the following items 
shall be considered by the Planning Advisory Commission and County Board when 
reviewing a Conditional Use Permit or Interim Use Permit Application for various Rural 
Tourism uses. Bed and Breakfasts and Retreat Centers shall also meet the standards found 
in Article 11 Section 13 and Article 11 Section 25 respectively.  

A. The size of the function and the number of expected guests on the property at one 
time shall be determined at the sole discretion of the County based on parcel size, 
proximity to adjacent neighbors and the ability of the applicant to demonstrate 

spierret
Highlight



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11  Amended July 18, 2023 

 

that there will be no unreasonable adverse impact on the neighbors from the noise, 
traffic, trespass, light or other impacts deemed relevant by the County. 

B. There is adequate provision for parking of vehicles so that there is no parking on 
public roads and adequate setbacks from adjacent properties are maintained. 
Temporary parking areas may be approved at the sole discretion of the County. 
Parking areas for facilities with greater than 50 guest capacity must be a minimum 
of 40 feet from all property lines, and appropriately screened from neighboring 
property. Light sources shall be directed downwards and shielded to prevent light 
being directed off the premises. 

C. The County may require a planted buffer between adjacent properties and parking 
or building if it is determined that such a buffer is necessary to avoid adverse 
impacts on adjacent properties. 

D. All State of Minnesota and Goodhue County requirements related to Water and 
Subsurface Wastewater Treatment Systems must be met. 

E. Outside activities shall be completed during daylight hours. Inside activities for 
facilities with greater than 50 guest capacity shall be completed by 10:00 PM 
unless approved through the CUP/IUP process to conclude no later than 12:00 AM 
(midnight). 

F. Any on-site preparation and handling of food or beverages must comply with all 
applicable Federal, State or Local Standards. 

G. The owner/operator will maintain a log of the activities occurring at the included 
activity/event dates, group identity, times and number of guests. 

H. The site plan with the above written descriptions along with any condition added 
during Planning Advisory Commission and/or County Board review will become a 
part of any approved conditional use permit or interim use permit. 

I. The main event area for facilities with greater than 50 guest capacity shall be at 
least 500 feet from neighboring dwellings.  

J. Rural Tourism uses for facilities with greater than 50 guest capacity shall be 
located on a parcel at least 3 acres in size.  

Section 31.    ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS (ADUS)  
Subd. 1.   Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are dwelling units that are accessory to a primary 

dwelling unit and are on the same tax parcel of land as the primary dwelling unit.   

A.   An ADU can be either:  

  1. Attached to, or within the primary dwelling unit; or  

2. Located within 100 feet of the primary dwelling unit on the same tax parcel 
as the primary dwelling unit.  

B.   ADU’s must have separate kitchen and bathroom facilities  

C.   Only one (1) ADU is permitted per primary dwelling site tax parcel  

D.   The ADU cannot be separated from the primary dwelling tax parcel  



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: December 18, 2023 
Report date: December 8, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Ordinance Updates  
Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards), and Article 20 
(Table of Uses) to allow Solid Waste Transfer Facilities. Proposed amendments to Article 32 (Floodplain 
District to add Repetitive Loss language.  
 
Attachments: 
Proposed Amendments 
Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
 
Solid Waste Transfer Facilities: 
The County Board began a process with the MPCA to close the Wanamingo demolition landfill in 
September 2023 (44284 135th AVE, Zumbrota in Minneola Township). With this closure, there is a 
desire from the County Board, staff, and residents to have a solid waste disposal option in the rural 
area of Goodhue County.  
 
For the past several years, the Wanamingo landfill used dumpsters to dispose of materials that were 
not allowed to be disposed of in the ground. After discussions with the MPCA and extensive research, 
it was determined the use of a property to dispose of solid waste that is brought to the site, stored in 
dumpsters, and removed once the dumpster reaches capacity would be considered a “Transfer 
Facility”. This type of operation is not a permissible use in the County Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Staff has researched other Minnesota Counties’ zoning rules and State of Minnesota statutes for solid 
waste transfer facilities. Many aspects of the state statutes are incorporated into the proposed 
performance standards. Goodhue County has a Waste Management Ordinance from 1990 that 
defines “Transfer Facilities” and has a few performance standards. Several Counties permit transfer 
facility operations in Agricultural, Industrial, and Business districts. Some Counties permit these 
facilities under performance standards found in their Solid Waste Ordinance while others have 
performance standards within their Zoning Ordinance.  
 
It is important to note that the current landowner of the Wanamingo demolition landfill, Glen 
Steberg, was in contract with Goodhue County regarding the use of his property and staffing the 
landfill for many years. With the closure of the landfill, Mr. Steberg has shown interest in continuing 
to operate a Transfer Facility if allowed by the County Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Steberg would need to 
obtain all proper County Zoning and Waste Management permits as well as any MPCA permits as 
needed. This Ordinance amendment would not be limited to Mr. Steberg’s property. Anyone could 
apply for a CUP/IUP for a Transfer Facility in an appropriate zoning district with Township 
approval.  
 
Article 10: 
Add a definition for Transfer Facility:  
 
TRANSFER FACILITY A fixed facility in which waste collected from any source is temporarily 

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428/Zoning-Ordinances?bidId=


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

deposited, compacted, or rearranged for transportation to another waste management facility in 
quantities up to 120 cubic yards or stored for more than 48 hours. 
 

 

Table of uses: 
• Add Transfer Facilities as a Conditional/Interim Use in A-1, Agricultural Protection, A-2, 

General Agriculture, and A-3, Urban Fringe Districts.  
 
Table of Uses – Business & Industrial Districts: 

• Add Transfer Facilities as a Conditional/Interim Use in Business and Industrial Districts.  
 
Article 11: 
 

• Add performance standards for Transfer Facilities 
 
 

Staff Recommendation:  
Land Use Management staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission adopt the staff report 
into the record and recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the amendments to 
Articles 10 (Definitions), 11 (Performance Standards), and 20 (Table of Uses) regarding Transfer 
Facilities.   
 
 
Floodplain Repetitive Loss Ordinance: 
Goodhue County Zoning is responsible for enforcing the FEMA Floodplain Ordinance as part of the 
National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). These rules are found in Article 32 of the County Zoning 
Ordinance. This responsibility includes working with property owners who suffer property losses due 
to flooding. FEMA rules require any nonconforming structure that is damaged more than 50% of its 
value to meet floodplain elevation/floodproofing standards if the structure will be reconstructed 
(substantial damage). FEMA includes a provision in its rules for “Repetitive Loss”: “If a structure is 
damaged by flooding on two separate occasions during a 10 year period equal to or exceeding 25% of 
its market value it shall be considered “substantially damaged”. Under the Repetitive Loss provision 
a structure may suffer flood losses over time and be considered “substantially damaged” which 
means the property owner may apply for funds under the NFIP to properly elevate or floodproof 
their structure. For property owners to apply for these funds, the County Zoning Ordinance must 
contain Repetitive Loss language.  
 
Additional minor changes have been proposed to Article 32 as recommended by the DNR’s 
Floodplain and Shoreland Planner. Adopting this language now means property owners may use 
2023 flood events and damages towards the “2 events in 10 years” provision.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Land Use Management staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission adopt the staff report 
into the record and recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the amendments to 
Article 32 (Floodplain District).  



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 10 July 18, 2023 

STEEP SLOPE.  Land where agricultural activity or development is either not 
recommended or described as poorly suited due to slope steepness and the site's soil 
characteristics, as mapped and described in available County soil surveys or other 
technical reports unless appropriate design and construction techniques and 
farming practices are used in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 
Where specific information is not available, steep slopes are lands having average 
slopes over twelve (12) percent, as measured over horizontal distances of fifty (50) 
feet or more, that are not bluffs. 
STREET.  Any thoroughfare or way other than a public alley, dedicated to the use 
of the public and open to public travel, whether designated as a road, avenue, 
highway, boulevard, drive, lane, circle, place, court or any other similar designation, 
or a private street open to restricted travel, at least thirty (30) feet in width. 
STRUCTURE.  Anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the 
ground or on-site utilities, including, but not limited to, buildings, factories, sheds, 
detached garages, cabins, manufactured homes, travel trailers/vehicles not meeting 
the exemption criteria specified in Article 32, Section 9, Subd. 3.A. of the Ordinance 
and other similar items. 
STRUCTURAL ALTERATION.  Any changes in the supporting members of a 
building such as bearing walls, columns, beams or girders or any substantial change 
in the roof and exterior walls. 
SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE.  See Article 32 (Floodplain District) 
SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT.  See Article 32 (Floodplain District)  
SUBSTATION, SES.  See Article 18 (WECS) 
SUBSTATION, WECS.  See Article 19 (SES) 
SWCD.  Soil and Water Conservation District. 
TASTING ROOM.  See Article 11 (Farm Wineries) 
TIMBER.  Standing trees which because of their size, quality and number are 
marketable. 
TIMBER HARVESTING AND LOGGING.  The cutting of trees over four (4) 
inches in diameter measured at breast height, skidding, on-site processing, and 
loading of trees to be removed from a parcel.  
TOWER ACCESSORY STRUCTURE.  See Article 17 (WCF) 
TOWER, HEIGHT.  See Article 17 (WCF) 
TOWER, METEOROLOGICAL.  See Article 18 (WECS) 
TOWER, WECS.  See Article 18 (WECS) 
TOWER, WCF.  See Article 17 (WCF) 
TRANSFER FACILITY A fixed facility in which waste collected from any source 
is    temporarily deposited, compacted, or rearranged for transportation to another 
waste management facility in quantities up to 120 cubic yards or stored more than 
48 hours. 
TRANSMISSION LINE.  See Article 18 (WECS) 
TREE CUTTING. Selective removal of trees over four (4) inches in diameter 
measured at breast height, for the purpose of forest or site management. 
USE.  The purpose for which land or buildings thereon are designed, arranged or 
intended to be occupied or used, or for which they are occupied or maintained. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11 Amended July 18, 2023 

G. The routes and conditions of local transportation networks will be part of the
review process to determine if they are capable of supporting the proposed use
without appreciably diminishing traffic safety along primary access routes. When
appropriate, the applicant shall bear the costs of required dust mitigation
measures.

Subd. 2. PERMITTED USES: Contractors Yards shall be allowed as shown in the table below. 

A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 B I CR MXH 

Contractors Yard C/I C/I C/I NP C/I P NP NP 

KEY:     P = Permitted Use     C = Conditional Use Permit     I = Interim Use Permit     NP = Use not permitted in the district 

Section 34.  Self-Service Storage Facilities 
Subd. 1. Self-Service Storage Facilities shall comply with the following standards: 

A. Storage units/facilities may only be used for storage. Storage units/facilities may
not be used for retail sales (including garage sales), industrial uses, vehicle repair,
human habitation, or storing any living animal or organism.

B. Storage of hazardous, flammable, or explosive materials as defined in MN Statute
182.651 is prohibited.

C. Water service to storage units is prohibited except for a fire suppression system.

D. The site shall not be located within any wetland, floodplain, or blufflands.

E. All lighting shall be downward projecting or shielded to prevent light from being
directed off the premises.

F. The facility shall be secured by fencing.

G. Exterior storage of materials, vehicles, and equipment may require screening from
public view.

H. Areas for exterior storage and access lanes for storage structures shall be surfaced
with aggregate, asphalt, or similar material.

I. Driving lanes between structures must be a minimum of 18 feet between the
nearest points of buildings.

J. A landscaping and drainage plan detailing adequate provisions for stormwater
control and erosion prevention shall be provided.

Section 35.   Transfer Facilities 
Subd. 1       Transfer Facilities shall comply with the following standards: 

A. No more than 120 cubic yards of waste shall be stored on-site at any given time and no 
more than 120 cubic yards of waste shall be managed on-site per day.

B. The site shall be located at least 1,000 feet from any existing dwelling, except dwellings 
on the same parcel as the Transfer Facility.



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance   Article 11 Amended July 18, 2023 

C. Transfer Facilities shall be located at least 1,000 feet from any Residential district 
(R1).

D. Transfer Facilities shall comply with the Goodhue County Waste Management 
Ordinance, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency requirements, state, and federal 
laws. Documents required for submittal under the Goodhue County Waste 
Management Ordinance for Transfer Facilities shall be submitted to the Zoning 
Administrator with the conditional use permit application. A copy of the MPCA 
permit (if required) shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator prior to 
opening.

E. The owner or operator shall submit information regarding the surrounding property 
uses, any potential environmental hazards, sanitary facilities and waste disposal, and 
lighting.

F. Exterior storage, loading, and unloading areas shall comply with setback 
requirements of the underlying zoning district and be adequately screened from view 
from all public roadways and adjacent residential uses except those uses on the same 
parcel as the Transfer Facility.

G. Outdoor storage and parking areas shall have durable, all-weather, impervious 
surfacing.

H. The site shall be fenced on all sides to prevent unlawful dumping and entrance.
I. At each entrance to the facility, the owner or operator shall install and maintain a 

sign that lists the wastes that are or are not accepted at the facility, its hours of 
operation, a number to call for assistance with disposal of items that are not 
accepted at the facility, the MPCA assigned permit number, name of the facility, and 
prices for use of the facility.

J. The owner or operator shall be responsible for ensuring the public access road that the 
facility is located on is not blocked or made impassable by hauled materials and that 
ditches are free of materials. The owner or operator shall be responsible for dust control 
on aggregate surfaced roads if requested by the road authority.

K. All materials shall be confined to the designated processing and storage areas. The 
property shall be maintained so as to prevent wind dispersion of materials. The 
facility grounds and immediately adjacent property shall be free of litter stemming 
from facility operations.

L. Mixed municipal solid waste, industrial waste, hazardous waste, and liquid waste shall 
not be accepted on-site, including oil.

M. Transfer Facilities shall not be located within a floodplain, shoreland, wetland, 
sinkhole, bluffland, or wild and scenic river district.



A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1 CS

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
NP NP NP C/I C/I
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP NP
NP C/I C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/Iabc NP NP

NP C/I NP NP NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

NP C/I C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I C/Ibc

C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I C/Ibc

C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP NP
NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP NP

P P P P P
P P C/I NP NP

C/I C/I NP NP NP
P P C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP NP
P P P P P
P P P P P

C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I NP NP NP NP
C/I NP NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP C/I
C/I C/I C/I NP NP  Solid Waste Transfer Facilities

Private School
Nursery School

Sanitary Landfills/Sewage Disposal Works

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Health Facilities

Retreat Centers (Art.11 § 25)

Church

WECS (Meteorological Tower) (Art. 18)

Funeral Home
Hospital, Sanitarium, Philanthropic/Eleemosynary Institutions (except correctional institutions, animal 
hospitals)

WECS (Non-Commercial)  (Art. 18)
WECS (Commercial) (Art. 18)

Public School

SES (Utility Scale)  (Art. 19)
SES (Commercial Scale)  (Art. 19)

Memorial Garden

Recreational 

Miscellaneous

SES (Residential Scale) (Art. 19)
Aircraft Landing Fields & Facilities 

Use

Community Building

Park/Recreational Area (operated by a governmental agency)
Park/Recreational Area
Hunting Club/Shooting Preserve
Campground &/or RV Site (Art.16 § 7)
Park Manager's Residence (1 per campground/RV park w/ ≥ 30 campsites)

Cemetery

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Facilities (including, but not limited to, Golf Courses/Driving Ranges, 
Tennis Courts, Skiing, Swimming Pools, Park Facilities)

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Table of Uses

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

WECS (Non-Commercial Micro) (Art. 18)

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Storage Structure (size & location to be approved by the Planning 
Advisory Commission)

Public Stable

Non-agricultural Lagoons (In accordance w/ MPCA regulations)
Migratory Labor Camp
Commercial Radio Towers/TV Towers/Transmitters

Institutional



B I
NP P
NP P

NP P

NP C/I
NP C/I
P P

NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I
NP C/I

C/I C/I

P P
C/I P
NP C/I
NP P
C/I C/I
P P
P P

C/I C/I
P P

C/I C/I
C/I C/I

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Business and Industrial Districts Table of Uses

 Explosives manufacture or storage

Use
Wholesale establishment: warehousing, storage buildings, commercial laundries or dry cleaning plants
Manufacture, compounding or treatment of materials
Manufacturing process or treatment of products using light machinery; such as tool and die shops or 
metal fabricating plants
Manufacturing of cement, lime, gypsum or plaster
Distillation of bone, coal, tar petroleum, refuse, grain or wood

   Essential services building or storage yards

Miscellaneous

   Fertilizer manufacture, compost or storage
   Refining or recovery of products from animal refuse or offal
   Junkyard
   Livestock feeding yards, slaughtering of animals or stock yards
   Petroleum or asphalt refining or manufacturing
   Smelting or refining of metals from ores
   Steam board hammers or forging presses
   Storing, curing, or tanning of raw, green or salted hides or skins

Institutional
Church

SES (Residential Scale) (Art. 19)
Commercial Radio Towers/TV Towers/Transmitters

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

WECS (Non-Commercial Micro) (Art. 18)
WECS (Non-Commercial)  (Art. 18)
WECS (Commercial) (Art. 18)
WECS (Meteorological Tower) (Art. 18)
SES (Utility Scale)  (Art. 19)
SES (Commercial Scale)  (Art. 19)

  Residence when included as part of the principal building occupied by owner or their employee
  Self service storage facility
  Solid waste transfer facility



Subd.49. "Shoreland" means land located within the following distances from public water: 

A. 1 ,000 feet from the ordinary high water mark of a lake, pond, or flowage; and

B. 300 feet from a river or stream, or the landward extent of a floodplain designed by
ordinance on such a river or stream, whichever is greater.

Subd.50. "Solid Waste" means garbage, refuse, sludge from a water supply treatment 
plant or air contaminant treatment facility, or other discarded waste materials and sludges, 
in solid, semi-solid, or contained gaseous form, resulting from industrial, commercial, 
mining, or agricultural operations, or from community activities, but doesnot include 
hazardous waste, animal waste used as fertilizer; earthen fill, boulders, rock; sewage 
sludge, solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage or other common pollutants in 
water resources, such as silt, dissolved or suspended solids in industrial wastewater 
effluents or discharges which are point sources subject to permits under 

Section 402 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act; as amended, dissolved materials 
in irrigation return flows; or source material, special nuclear material, or byproduct material 
as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended. 

Subd.51. "Transfer Facility" means a fixed or mobile facility in which waste collected from 
any source is temporarily deposited, compacted, or r~arranged for transportation to 
another waste management facility in quantities greater than 10 cubic yards or stored 
more than 48 hours. Trucks and semi-trailers used solely to deliver waste from one facility 
to another are not considered to be transfer facilities. 

Subd.52. "Transporter" means a person engaged in the off-site transportation of 
hazardous waste by air, rail, highway, or water. 

Subd.53. "Waste Management" means the storage, collection, processing or removal of 
waste from or on public or private property, its transportation to intermediate storage 
facilities or its final disposal or processing by methods approved by the Agency. 

Subd.54. "Waste Collection Service" means a public or private operation engaged in 
waste collection and transportation. 

Subd.55. "Waste Materials" means all wastes defined as a hazardous waste or solid 
waste in their processed or unprocessed state. Waste materials include source-separated 
wastes, refuse-derived fuel, recyclables, compost, ash, etc. 

Subd.56. "Water Pollution" means the discharge of any pollutant into any waters of the 
state or the contamination of any waters of the state so as to create a nuisance or render 
such waters unclean, or noxious, or impure so as to be actually or potentially harmful or 
detrimental injurious to public health, safety or welfare, to domestic, agricultural, 
commercial, industrial, recreational or other legitimate uses; or to livestock, animals, birds, 
fish or other aquatic life; or the man made or man-induced alteration of the chemical, 
physical, biological, or radiological integrity of waters of the state. 

- Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 8 -

spierret
Highlight



G. A plan must exist for the routing of materials, if particular markets disappear or if
the facility must close for a period of time - either scheduled or unscheduled
shutdowns.

H. If the facility is open for use by individuals, a separate unloading area must be
provided or traffic controlled to prevent collisions between commercial and
individual vehicles. This provision may be waived by the Administrator for facilities
with fewer than 10 vehicles entering per day.

I. When the facility is permanently closed, all materials must be removed and
properly managed.

SECTION IX. TRANSFER FACILITIES. 

Subd. 1. No person shall construct or operate a waste transfer facility without first 
obtaining a license issued by Goodhue County. The license shall be obtained in 
accordance with Sections II, V, and XX, and the facility must comply with Agency permit 
requirements. 

Subd.2. The applicant must provide the following information when applying for a license 
to construct and/or operate a transfer facility: 

A. the facility design and layout;

B. the types and number of vehicles expected to use the facility;

C. the types of waste to be accepted;

D. the hours of operation;

E. the storage capacity of the facility;

F. final location of waste;

G. on-site traffic operations;

H. operating plans;

I. recycling and composting activities to be conducted, if any; and

J. a copy of all permit materials submitted to the Agency.

Subd.3. All facility structures must be at least 20 feet from any property line and conform 
with all building and zoning ordinances. 

Subd. 4. The design and operation of a transfer facility must meet the following standards: 

A. The facility must be secured.

- Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 16 -

spierret
Highlight



B. The facility must have all-weather roads that are negotiable by loaded collection
vehicles.

C. Tie downs or wheel curbs must be provided at elevated unloading areas.

D. Tipping areas must be cleaned on a routine basis and capable of containing free
moisture.

E. All loading and unloading must be completed on an impervious surface.

F. Special storage areas, Le. tires, appliances, etc., must be designed to prevent
nuisance conditions, fire hazards, or other safety or health hazard.

G. All putrescrible waste must be removed at least twice per week and all stored
materials at least monthly, unless otherwise approved.

Subd. 5. At closure, all materials must be removed from the facility and properly stored. 

SECTION X. COMPOST SITES AND FACILITIES. 

Subd. 1. A person operating a backyard compost site shall not be required to obtain a 
license under this Ordinance. 

Subd.2. Backyard compost sites must be operated in a nuisance-free condition. No meat 
scraps or other uncompostable material may be deposited in the site. The pile must be 
turned regularly. 

Subd. 3. All community yard waste compost sites must be licensed in accordance with 
Section II, unless publicly-owned and operated. All sites must receive a permit-by-rule 
from the Agency. 

Subd.4. All yard waste compost sites must be constructed and operated in accordance 
with the following standards: 

A. Surface water drainage must be diverted from the compost area.

B. The compost site must have controlled access and open only during posted hours.

C. During the active lawn-cutting months when large amounts of grass are entering
the site, the compost piles must be turned at least weekly with alternating days
preferred. During the winter months, turning will not be required at a rate more
frequent than monthly.

D. Odors must be controlled.

E. Non-compostables must be removed from the site at least weekly.

- Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 17 -



Subd.57. "Water Table" means the surface of the ground water at which the pressure is 
atmosphere. Generally this is the top of the saturated zone. 

Subd.58. "Waters of the State" means any waters, surface or underground, except those 
surface waters which are not confined but are spread and diffused over the land. "Waters 
of the State" includes all boundary and inland waters. 

Subd.59. "Wetland" means a surface water feature classified as a wetland in the 
publication entitled "Classification of Wetlands and Deep Water Habitats of the United 
States," written and published by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service Biological 
Services Program, FWS 035-71/31, December 1979. 

Subd.60. "Yard Waste" means the garden wastes, leaves, lawn cuttings, weeds, and 
prunings generated at residential or commercial properties. 

SECTION II. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

Subd. 1. No person shall cause, permit, or allow land or property under his control to be 
used for waste management purposes, except at an operation for which a license has 
been granted by the County Board, unless otherwise provided by this Ordinance. 

The Administrator may take action as allowed under Section VI, subdivisions 2 through4 
for actions violating this subdivision. 

Subd. 2. Any operation to be used for any method of waste management not otherwise 
provided for in this Ordinance must be licensed by the County Board before operation may 
commence. The license application shall include three sets of complete plans, 
specifications, design data and ultimate land use plans. Proposed operating procedures 
for a waste management facility must be prepared by a professional engineer registered in 
Minnesota. The applicant shall procure a proper zoning permit to accompany the 
application if required by a local governmental unit's Zoning Ordinance. 

No license shall be issued for a waste facility unless the applicant has demonstrated to the 
satisfaction of the County Board the availability of revenues necessary to operate the 
facility in accordance with applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances and rules. 

Subd.3. After receiving an application for an operation, the County Board shall refer such 
applications to the Administrator who shall give a recommendation to the County Board 
concerning whether it should issue or deny the license. If an applicant is denied a license, 
such applicant shall be notified in writing of the reasons therefor by the County Board. A 
denial shall be without prejudice to the applicant's right to an appearance before the 
County Board or to the applicants right to file a further application after revisions are made 
to satisfy objections specified as reasons for the denial. All applicant's shall receive a 
preliminary response within 60 days of submittal and a final response within 120 days. 
Response times may be extended to obtain more information and/or to hold required 
public hearings. 

- Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 9 -

spierret
Highlight



Subd.4. The County Board shall refuse to issue a license for any operation that does not 
comply with this Ordinance, Agency rules and the County's Solid Waste Management 
Plan. 

Subd. 5. Issuance of any license pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance shall be 
contingent upon the applicant furnishing to the County a bond in an amount to be set by 
the County Board. This bond shall name the County as obligee with sufficient sureties duly 
licensed and authorized to transact business in the State of Minnesota as sureties. The 
condition of such bond shall be that, if the licensee fails to comply with any requirements 
or fails to perform any of the acts required of an operation or ceases to operate any 
monies or expend any labor or material to restore the operation to a condition in 
compliance with this Ordinance, the bond holder and the sureties on its bond shall 
reimburse the County for any and all expenses incurred by the County to remedy failure of 
the licensee to comply with the terms of this Ordinance, and the bond holder and its 
sureties shall indemnify and save the County harmless from all losses, costs, and charges 
that may occur to the bond holder or its sureties because of any default of the licensee 
under the terms of the bond terms to operate in compliance with the terms of the 
ordinances of the County. 

Subd.6. In addition to the bond referred to in subdivision 5, issuance of any license 
pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance shall be contingent upon the applicant 
securing insurance, and furnishing to the County a copy of a certificate therefor, the 
following types of insurance issued to the licensee by insurers duly licensed within the 
State of Minnesota and in amounts to be set by County Board; general liability including, 
but not limited to, bodily injury, property damage, motor vehicle, or other insurance such 
as Worker's Compensation, required by State or County Law. 

Subd.7. Any license granted by the County Board under the provisions of this Ordinance 
may be suspended by the County Board at any time for noncompliance with the provisions 
of the license, this Ordinance or applicable state laws or rules, or upon written notification 
to the licensee and the County Board by the Administrator or by an authorized 
representative of the Agency that the continued use of the operation endangers the 
health, welfare or safety of the public or that the continued use pollutes or impairs the 
environment. 

The notice of suspension shall be deemed adequately served whenever it is served upon 
the licensee personally or by leaving the same at the licensed premises with the person in 
charge thereof or by registered mail. A copy of the notice of suspension shall be provided 
to the County Board. The County Board shall remove the license suspension only upon 
presentation of evidence acceptable to the County Board that the conditions that were 
cited as cause for suspension have been fully corrected. 

A license may be revoked only after the County Board has held a public hearing at which 
the licensee and other persons wishing to be heard concerning the operation shall have 
the right to be heard. The date of the hearing for license revocation shall be set by the 
County Board and shall not be held earlier than thirty days after notice of said hearing was 
mailed to the licensee. Evidence may be adduced in a manner consistent with the rules of 

- Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 10 -



evidence applied in civil cases. A transcript thereof shall be made by tape recording or 
other suitable technique. 

If, pursuant to said hearing, the County Board shall determine that the operation has been 
conducted in violation of the provisions of the license, this Ordinance, State laws or State 
rules, the County Board may revoke the license or continue such suspension until the 
licensee has demonstrated that full compliance with the rules has been attained and that 
such compliance will be continued in the foreseeable future. 

Subd. 8. Routine inspection and evaluation of an operation shall be made by the 
Administrator at such frequency as to ensure consistent compliance by the operation with 
the provisions of this Ordinance. The licensee shall be provided with a written inspection 
report containing a precise description of any deficiencies, recommendations for the 
correction thereof and the date when the corrections shall be accomplished. Copies of 
said report(s) shall be furnished to the Agency. The licensee shall allow to authorized 
representatives of the County or the Agency access to the facility at any time for purpose 
of making such inspections as may be necessary to determine compliance with the 
requirements of this Ordinance, and any other applicable statute, ordinance, or rule. 

Subd. 9. Where the conditions imposed by any provision of this Ordinance differ with 
conditions imposed by other provision of this Ordinance, or any other applicable law, 
ordinance or rule, the provision that establishes the higher standards for the promotion of 
the public health, safety, and general welfare shall prevail. 

Subd.10. Every license issued under this Ordinance for a waste management shall be 
registered with the office of the Administrator. 

Subd.11. All unpaid bills related to waste management may be certified on the tax rolls for 
the next year. 

SECTION III. SOLID WASTE ADMINISTRATOR. 

Subd. 1. The Solid Waste Administrator shall have all necessary authority to implement 
and carry out the provisions of this Ordinance including, but not limited to, the following: 

A. To review and consider all license applications anQ supporting materials referred to
the Administrator for waste management within the County, and after such review
and consideration, to recommend in writing with documentation to the County
Board whether a license should be granted or denied;

B. To inspect operations to determine compliance and to investigate complaints about
violations of this Ordinance;

C. To recommend to the County Attorney that legal proceedings be initiated against a
person or group of persons to compel compliance with the provisions of this
Ordinance or to terminate or control an operation not in compliance with this
Ordinance;

- Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 11 -



create a nuisance, safety concerns or health hazard. Approval may be granted for longer 
storage at the time of licensure for a commercial hauler based on the service provided. 

SECTION V. COLLECTION AND TRANSPORTATION OF WASTE. 

Subd. 1. The collection and transportation of waste materials shall be performed in 
accordance with State rules administered by the Agency. 

Subd.2. Toxic or hazardous wastes shall be transported in a manner consistent with State 
rules administered by the Agency. 

Subd. 3. No person may collect or transport waste materials for hire without first obtaining 
a license from the County Board. The County Board shall not issue a license until the 
applicant complies with all of the following requirements: 

A. The applicant shall submit a completed application form provided by the County for
a waste collection and transportation license.

B. The applicant shall submit for inspection to the County, when requested but no
more than once per year except when are detected as not meeting Ordinance
standards, all vehicles to be used for waste collection and transportation. An annual
Minnesota Department of Transportation inspection shall be conducted prior to
license issuance. The Minnesota Department of Transportation inspection results
may be used in replacement of a County inspection.

Such vehicles shall have leak-resistant bodies of easily cleanable construction,
completely covered with metal, heavy canvas or other suitable covering, and shall
be subject to approval and periodic inspection by the Administrator or the
Administrator's designee.

C. The applicant shall meet all of the applicable requirements for obtaining a license
that are specified in Section II of this Ordinance.

D. The applicant shall establish a fee for collection and transportation of waste
materials on a volume-based system, to the extent possible.

SECTION VI. LITTER. 

Subd. 1. It shall be unlawful to place any portion of waste in or on public or private lands, 
shorelands, roadways, or waters. Such placement will be considered littering under this 
Ordinance. 

Subd. 2. A person in violation of Subdivision 1 shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than twice or more than five times the amount of cost incurred by the County to remove, 
process, and dispose of the waste. 

- Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 13 -

spierret
Highlight



the Ordinance. Prior to any public hearing held by the County Board under this provision, 
persons who may be adversely affected by the granting of the proposed variance shall be 
given at least thirty (30) days notice to said public hearing. Publication of a notice of 
hearing in appropriate newspapers shall be considered adequate notice. 

SECTION XIX. NONCONFORMING SITES AND FACILITIES. 

Waste management facilities in existence on the effective date of this Ordinance shall 
conform to the provisions of this Ordinance or terminate operations no later than 240 days 
from that date unless a variance application is submitted to the County Board within 180 
days period following the effective date of this Ordinance. If the variance request is 
denied, the waste management facility must be properly closed. 

SECTION XX. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS. 

For the purpose of protecting the public health, safety and welfare, the County Board may 
impose additional requirements consistent with the intent of this Ordinance for the 
operation of waste management sites or facilities. 

SECTION XXI. SEVERABILITY. 

It is hereby declared to be the intention of the County Board that the several provisions of 
this Ordinance be severable in accordance with the following: 

Subd. 1. If any Court of competent jurisdiction shall adjudge any provision of this 
Ordinance to be invalid, such judgement shall not affect any other provision of this 
Ordinance not specifically included in said judgement. 

Subd. 2. If any Court of competent jurisdiction shall adjudge invalid the application of any 
provision of this Ordinance to a particular structure, site, facility, or operation not 
specifically included said judgement. 

SECTION XXII. PROVISIONS ARE CUMULATIVE 

The provisions of this Ordinance are cumulative limitation upon all other laws and 
ordinances heretofore passed or that may be passed hereafter, covering any subject 
matter of this Ordinance. 

SECTION XXIII. NO CONSENT. 

Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall be deemed to be consent, license or permit to 
locate, construct, operate or maintain any site, facility or operation, or to carry on any 
activity. 

SECTION XXIV. VIOLATIONS. 

Subd. 1. Any person who violates or fails, neglects or refuses to comply with the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof 

-Goodhue County Waste Management Ordinance 23 -

spierret
Highlight






































